
Please ask for Democratic Services: Telephone 01775 764626 
e-mail: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Committee - GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

Date & Time - Thursday, 25 July 2019 at 4.30 pm

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding

Membership of the Governance and Audit Committee:

Councillors: C J T H Brewis, A M Newton, P A Redgate, J L Reynolds (Vice-Chairman), 
M D Seymour, E J Sneath (Chairman) and S C Walsh

Quorum 3.

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn off mobile telephones 

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE

Date:  17 July 2019

Public Document Pack

Page 1



AGENDA
PLEASE NOTE TIMINGS
ARE APPROXIMATE

TIME
4.30pm 1. Apologies for absence. 

4.31pm 2. Declaration of Interests - (Where a Councillor has a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor must 
declare the interest to the meeting and leave the room 
without participating in any discussion or making a 
statement on the item, except where a Councillor is 
permitted to remain as a result of a grant of 
dispensation). 

4.32pm 3. Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 6 June 2019 (copy enclosed).

(Pages 5 - 
16)

4.35pm 4. External Audit Progress report and Unaudited Statement 
of Accounts 2018/19 - To update the Governance and 
Audit Committee of events since the unaudited Financial 
Statements were presented (report of the Executive 
Director Commercialisation (S151) enclosed.

(Pages 17 
- 144)

4.50pm 5. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme - To 
set out the Work Programme of the Governance and 
Audit Committee (report of the Executive Manager 
Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) enclosed).

(Pages 
145 - 150)

4.55pm 6. Quarter 1 2019-20 Risk Report - To provide an update to 
the committee on the progress of the Council’s identified 
strategic risks (report of the Executive Director, Strategy 
and Governance enclosed).

Please note that Appendix 2 associated with this 
report is not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 3 
(Information relating to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the 
authority holding that information)) in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, 
and is therefore attached to this agenda as item 9.

(Pages 
151 - 166)

5.00pm 7. Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent. 

NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by 
reason of special circumstances, which 
shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of 
urgency.

Page 2



5.01pm 8. To consider resolving that, under section 100A (4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from 
the meeting for the following item of business on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraph 3 of part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act. 

5.02pm 9. Quarter 1 2019-20 Risk Report - (Appendix 2 enclosed). (Pages 
167 - 168)

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE held in the 
Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Thursday, 6 June 2019 
at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

E J Sneath (Chairman)
J L Reynolds (Vice-Chairman)

C J T H Brewis P A Redgate S C Walsh

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors A M Newton 
and M D Seymour  

In Attendance:  F Haywood (Internal Audit Manager, Eastern Internal Audit Services) 
and M Hodgson (Ernst & Young), the Shared Executive Director Commercialisation 
(S151), Strategic Finance and Compliance Manager, Financial Control Manager, 
Finance Manager Treasury, the Corporate Improvement and Performance Manager 
and the Democratic Services Officer.

Action By
1. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

Councillor Sneath informed the meeting that in the interests of 
transparency, she wished it to be recorded that, although she did 
not hold a financial interest, she was a Director of Welland Homes 
Ltd.  

2. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting of the Governance and Audit 
Committee held on 14 March 2019 were signed by the Chairman 
as a correct record.  It was noted that Councillors Brewis and 
Seymour were the only remaining members from that meeting, 
and as Councillor Seymour had given his apologies, his 
agreement of the minutes from the meeting of 14 March 2019 be 
sought outside of the meeting.

Members also commented on the good work undertaken by the 
previous Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Governance and 
Audit Committee (Councillors G Aley and J Astill respectively) and 
asked that the Committee’s thanks be conveyed to them.

3. QUARTER 4 2018-19 RISK REPORT 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Strategy and Governance which provided an update to the 
Committee on the progress of the Council’s identified strategic 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.



- 2 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
6 June 2019

risks.

The Committee noted the following:

Although the number of risks had remained static in each 
category, there had been some positive movement within the 
categories and that for the third consecutive month, there had 
been no risks identifies as high.  Of the 17 strategic risks, 15 were 
medium and 2 were low.

Of those considered a medium risk, there had been a positive 
movement for the following:  

 The risk relating to the Council’s implementation of the GDPR 
regulations had reduced as a result of the successful 
completion of the Privacy Notices and development of the 
Asset Registers.  In addition, a project plan to monitor 
performance had been completed and ‘reasonable assurance’ 
had been received following an internal audit;

 There had been a further reduction in the risk relating to staff 
recruitment and retention – Quarter 4 had continued the low 
turnover trend seen in Q3 with only 4 staff leaving the Council 
in the quarter.  In addition, staff recruitment continued to 
improve across all areas of the Council.  Retention also 
continued its positive trend and all posts were being recruited 
to within the target times set;

 The risk relating to the failure to deliver the local plan had 
reduced to the lowest risk level as the Local Plan Inspectors’ 
report was received on 29 January, and subject to 
modifications, was found to be sound.  The Local Plan was 
subsequently adopted at a meeting of the South East 
Lincolnshire Local Plan Joint Committee on 8 March;

 Another risk which had reduced in impact was of a critical 
breach of ICT security.  The service had assessed the risk 
based on the current cyber security threats for all local 
government organisations and PSPSP IT were constantly 
ensuring that the most current anti-virus and malware software 
was in place, in addition to ongoing user education and 
support.

The remaining risks, although reviewed, remained static from 
Quarter 3.  These included – the Council’s medium term financial 
plan, including the uncertainty surrounding the future of the 
Government’s Settlement Funding; the impact of business rate 
appeals and county council budget reductions; the risk relating to 
the impact on the Council of the Homelessness Reduction Act; 
contracts monitoring risk remained the same as the last quarter; 
the risk around PSPS failure to deliver core services remained 

Page 6



- 3 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
6 June 2019

stable; and the risk surrounding the failure to effectively 
implement the corporate business continuity plans remained the 
same.

Members were advised that a new administration team would be 
reviewing KPIs and carrying out reviews of strategic risks.  More 
information on this would be shared with the Committee at as part 
of the Q1 2019/20 report.
 
Following consideration of the report, the following issues were 
raised:

 Staff recruitment and retention – members commented that 
the low number of leavers was a good news story.  

 Impact of business rates appeals – had this been resolved, 
particularly in relation to the issue around power stations?  
Officers responded that an update had been received from the 
valuation office, but there was still no date regarding when the 
appeal would be held.  However, this was no longer a 
substantial risk as the majority of the amount has been wound 
down in the accounts, with only the amount relating to the 
appeal left as a risk.

 Members asked when the business continuity plans would be 
signed off by the Emergency Planning Board.  Officers 
responded that this information would be fed back to 
members. 

AGREED:

That the report be noted.

4. PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY 

Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit which examined the progress made between 4 March 2019 
and 24 May 2019, in relation to the completion of the internal 
audit plan of work for 2018/19.

The Governance and Audit Committee received updates on 
progress made against the annual internal audit plan.  The report 
formed part of the overall reporting requirements to assist the 
Council in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the internal 
audit activity.

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards required the Chief 
Audit Executive to report to the Governance and Audit Committee 
the performance of internal audit relative to its agreed plan, 
including any significant risk exposures and control issues.  The 

Page 7



- 4 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
6 June 2019

frequency of reporting at South Holland was to each meeting.  To 
comply with the above the requirements, the report identified:

 Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan;
 Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year;
 Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and 
 Performance measures to date

The Committee was advised that details of progress made in 
delivering the agreed audit work, and the outcomes arising from 
the auditor’s work was detailed within the report.

During the period covered by the report, Internal Audit Services 
had issued six final reports – Payroll and HR (Reasonable 
Assurance); Service Desk  (Substantial Assurance);Assurance 
Review of Budget Management (Reasonable Assurance); 
Housing Needs Allocations – Homelessness and Housing 
(Reasonable Assurance); Compass Point – Finance 
Arrangements (Reasonable Assurance); and Communities 
Enforcement, Community Safety and ASB (Reasonable 
Assurance).

AGREED:

That the report be noted.

5. FOLLOW UP REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit, which provided members with the position on progress 
made by management in implementing agreed Internal Audit 
recommendations as at 31 March 2019.

In 2017/18, a total of 85 recommendations were raised by both 
internal audit providers.  Of those, 75 had been implemented by 
management, 10 were outstanding (5 urgent and 5 important).  It 
was encouraging to note that 6 high priority recommendations, 
and 1 important had been completed in this period, representing 
good progress in closing down historical recommendations.  The 
management responses in relation to the outstanding urgent and 
important outstanding recommendations could be seen in 
Appendix 2 of the report.

In 2018/19, a total of 76 recommendations had been raised so far.  
Of these, 28 had been completed and 4 (3 important and 1 
needing attention) were overdue.  A total of 44 recommendations 
were not yet due.  The management responses in relation to the 

Page 8



- 5 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
6 June 2019

outstanding important recommendations could be seen in 
Appendix 3 of the report. 

Members were provided with an update on the Procurement and 
Contract Management audit, which had received a limited 
assurance.  The report had been raised in January 2019 - Nine 
important recommendations had been raised, 6 of these had now 
been actioned, with 3 outstanding – these were included within 
Appendix 3 of the report, with the reasons why they were 
overdue.  In addition, there were 3 need attention 
recommendations - 1 had hit the deadline, 1 was overdue with a 
new deadline and 1 was completed).

Members considered the information, and the following issues 
were raised:

 It was noted that Financial Services had only received a 
limited assurance. Members were advised that this report was 
currently in draft, that the progress report would cover points 
raised, and that work was still ongoing with regard to issues 
such as staff responsibilities.

 Members asked whether actions due at the end of March were 
still outstanding.  It was noted that a fresh update was required 
on these points.  The Financial Control Manager stated that 
procurement of the new document management system was 
still outstanding, but that progress was being made.  With 
regard to progress on actions due in May, these items would 
be included within the follow up report to the next meeting.

 Members stated that the Committee would be monitoring the 
deadline dates, and would be challenging occasions where 
there were repeated  extensions.

 Members commented that the report currently showed only 
the due date and did not reflect if a deadline had been moved.  
It was requested that in the future, where a deadline was 
moved, that this be included, as well as how many times it had 
been moved.

AGREED:

That the report be noted.

6. ANNUAL REPORT AND OPINION 2018-19 

Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit which provided an Annual Report and Opinion for 2018/19, 
drawing upon the outcomes of Internal Audit work performed over 
the course of the year, and concluded on the Effectiveness of 
Internal Audit.

Page 9



- 6 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
6 June 2019

In line with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), 
which came into force from 1 April 2013, an annual opinion should 
be generated which concluded on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk 
management and control:

 A summary of the work which supported the opinion should be 
submitted;

 Reliance placed on other assurance providers should be 
recognised;

 Any qualifications to that opinion, together with the reason for 
qualification must be provided;

 There should be disclosure of any impairments or restriction to 
the scope of the opinion;

 There should be a comparison of actual audit work undertaken 
with planned work;

 The performance of internal audit against its performance 
measures and targets should be summarised; and

 Any other issues considered relevant to the Annual 
Governance Statement should be recorded.

The report also contained conclusions on the Review of the 
Effectiveness of Internal Audit, which included:

 The degree of conformance with the PSIAS and the results of 
any quality assurance and improvement programme;

 The outcomes of the performance indicators; and
 The degree of compliance with CIPFA’s Statement on the 

Role of the Head of Internal Audit.

The following points were highlighted:

 The opinion itself was positive – last year it had been ‘limited’ 
and this year it had improved to ‘reasonable’.

 The vast majority of issues raised in the 2017/18 Internal Audit 
Annual Opinion had been resolved

 Third Party Assurances – As was the case last year, the work 
on this had not been totally concluded.  Improvement was 
needed and would be sought.

Members considered the information, and the following issues 
were raised:

 With regard to the ELDC reports, referred to in appendix 2, if 
there was only limited assurance, why had this not been 
identified for review?  Members were advised that these 

Page 10



- 7 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
6 June 2019

service areas were reviewed annually, and this would be 
picked up again next year.

 It was noted that the Communications department and the 
Legal Services department had not been reviewed since 2016.  
Officers advised that those area that were not high risk would 
not be reviewed as regularly.  If specific risks were to arise in 
this area, internal audit would be able to carry out an 
assurance review if requested by management or the 
Committee.  

AGREED:

a) That the contents of the Annual Report and Opinion of the 
Head of Internal Audit be received and approved;

b) That it be noted that a Reasonable audit opinion had been 
given in relation to governance, risk management and control 
for the year ended 31 March 2019;

c) That it be noted that the opinions expressed together with 
significant matters arising from internal audit work and 
contained within the report should be given due consideration, 
when developing and reviewing the Council’s Annual 
Governance Statement for 2018/19; and

d) That the conclusion of the Review of the Effectiveness of 
Internal Audit be noted.

7. UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018/19 INCLUDING 
NARRATIVE REPORT AND ANNUAL GOVERNANCE 
STATEMENT 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation (S151) which presented the unaudited 
Financial Statements 2018/19, including Annual Governance 
Statement for members’ consideration, prior to formal approval by 
the Executive Director Commercialisation. 

The Accounts and Audit regulations 2015 required that the 
Responsible Financial Officer signed the unaudited Financial 
Statements no later than 31 May; and the Financial statements be 
considered and approved by a committee of the Council no later 
than 31 July.

As part of the governance role, and in line with good practice, the 
report presented the unaudited financial statements to the 
Committee, to enable comments and challenge, and to highlight 
any key areas.

Page 11



- 8 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
6 June 2019

The Financial Statements production process was complete, and 
included in Appendix A was the unaudited version of the 2018/19 
Financial Statements (this included the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement; Movement in Reserves Statement; 
Cash Flow Statement and Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019). 

The unaudited Financial Statements included the draft Annual 
Governance Statement, which the Committee was asked to 
review.  The Annual Governance Statement explained how the 
Council had complied with the Code of Practice, and also met the 
requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations in relation to 
completing an annual review of the effectiveness of the Council’s 
system of internal control.  The Annual Governance Statement 
had been updated to reflect various changes, such as areas 
highlighted in the internal audit annual report and opinion, and a 
review of significant governance issues

The timescales involved with the approval, inspection and audit of 
the Council’s financial statements for 2018/19 were:

 Executive Director (Commercialisation) 
signs Statements 31 May 2019

 Accounts available for public inspection 
from 31 May 2019

 Unaudited Financial Statements to 
Committee 6 June 2019

 Audit by Ernst and Young to 
Commence  July 2019 (date 

TBC)
 Financial Statements approved by

Committee 25 July 2019
 Auditor’s opinion on Statements issued

 by 31 July 2019

The accounts had been prepared in accordance with the Code of 
Practice and the Council’s accounting policies, which were 
brought to the Committee in March 2019.

The External Auditor, Ernst &Young, commented that their audit 
plan had been presented to the last meeting of the Governance 
and Audit Committee.  They had hoped to bring forward their work 
from the beginning of July however, this had not been possible 
and the date committed to was confirmed as 1 July 2019, with the 
Approval of Annual Governance Statement, for inclusion with the 
Council’s published financial statements and approval of the 
audited 2018/19 financial statements to be brought to 25 July 
meeting for sign off by the end of July 2019.

Page 12



- 9 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
6 June 2019

ACTION:

That the unaudited Financial Statements 2018/19, and the draft 
Annual Governance Statement, included within the unaudited 
Financial Statements 2018/19 be approved.

8. ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REVIEW 2018/19 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation (S151) which requested that the Committee 
consider the Annual Treasury Management Review 2018/19 prior 
to it being submitted to Council for approval.

The Council was required by regulations issued under the Local 
Government Act 2003 to produce an annual treasury 
management review of activities and the actual prudential and 
treasury indicators for 2018/19.  The report met the requirements 
of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management 
(the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in 
Local Authorities (the Prudential Code).

During 2018/19, the following reports had been submitted: 

 An annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (to Council 
8 March 2018);

 A mid year (minimum) treasury update report (to Council on 28 
November 2018);

 An annual review following the end of the year, describing the 
activity compared to the strategy (the report under 
consideration)

The regulatory environment placed responsibility on members for 
the review and scrutiny of treasury management policy and 
activities. The report was therefore important in that respect, as it 
provided details of the outturn position for treasury activities and 
highlighted compliance with the Council’s policies previously 
approved by members.

The Council confirmed that it had complied with the requirement 
under the Code to give prior scrutiny to all of the above treasury 
management reports by the Governance and Audit Committee.  
Member training on treasury management issues was undertaken 
on 15 March 2018, in order to support the members’ scrutiny role.

The Treasury Management function was administered by Public 
Sector Partnership Services Ltd (previously known as Compass 

Page 13



- 10 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
6 June 2019

Point Business Services) on behalf of the Council.

The report summarised the following:

 Capital activity during the year;
 Impact of the activity on the Council’s underlying indebtedness 

(the Capital Financing Requirement);
 The actual prudential and treasury indicators;
 Overall treasury position identifying how the Council had 

borrowed in relation to its indebtedness, and the impact on 
investment balances;

 Summary of interest rate movements in the year;
 Borrowing and investment outturn positions;
 Economy and interest rates.

Members were advised that training on treasury management 
issues would be provided in the next few months for new 
members of the Committee

AGREED:

That the report be noted.

9. GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK 
PROGRAMME 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager–
Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer), which set out the Work 
Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee.

AGREED:

That the report and content of the Work Programme be noted.

10. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT. 

The Chairman stated that the next meeting of the Committee was 
to start at 4.30pm, and would members wish to consider this as 
the start time for all future meetings?  It was agreed that this 
should be considered at the next meeting, which would start at 
4.30pm, and when all members were present.

Members passed on their best wishes to the Financial Control 
Manager who was shortly due to start maternity leave.

Members congratulated Councillor Sneath on chairing her first 
Governance and Audit Committee meeting.

Page 14



- 11 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
6 June 2019

(The meeting ended at 7.58 p.m.)

(End of minutes)

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Christine Marshall – Executive Director Commercialisation (S151 Officer) 

To: Governance and Audit Committee 25 July 2019

Author: Steve Houchin – Head of Financial Services

Subject: External Audit Progress report and Unaudited Statement of Accounts 
2018/19

Purpose: To update the Audit and Governance Committee of events since the 
unaudited Financial Statements were presented.

Recommendation(s): 

That the Governance and Audit Committee:

1) Note the update on the Financial Statements 2018/19.

2) Approve the Annual Governance Statement 2018/19.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1      The draft 2018/19 Financial Statements were signed by the Section 151 Officer on 31 May 
2019 and presented to the Committee on 6 June 2019.

1.2 The external audit of the draft statement of accounts for the year ended 31 March 2019 has 
not yet been completed by the external auditors, EY LLP, due to EY’s resourcing 
pressures.  This situation is allowed for by Regulation 10, paragraph (2a) of the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 2015.   (See link: 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234/regulation/10/made

1.3 As per paragraph (2a), of the above regulations the Council are not yet able to publish the 
audited 2018/19 final statement of accounts in line with deadline of 31st July 2019, as per 
paragraph (1). The Governance and Audit Committee will instead consider the results of 
the 2018/19 audit at its meeting on 24th October 2019, after which we will publish the final 
audited accounts.

1.4 The audit of the 2018/19 Financial Statements is currently scheduled to commence late 
September 2019, and the latest Statements are attached as Appendix A, including the 
Annual Governance Statement.

1.5 At the time of writing this report we are aware of an issue relating to pensions, which is as a 
result of a recent Supreme Court judgement. This ruled that the 2015 changes to public 
sector pensions had discriminated against younger employees. The ruling means Council 
pension funds will likely have to compensate and account for payments to ensure that no 
employee is left out of pocket. The Council’s actuary have advised that there is an 
estimated £212,000 impact on the pension liabilities figures in the accounts, although no 
impact to the Council’s general fund. 

1.6 It has been decided that due to materiality levels no adjustment be made to the 2018/19 
accounts and the Council has decided to treat this as a contingent liability.

Page 17

Agenda Item 4.

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234/regulation/10/made


1.7  Annual Governance Statement

1.7.1    This was reviewed at the last meeting held on the 6th June 2019 and is attached at 
Appendix B. 

1.7.2    The Annual Governance Statement will need to be signed by the Leader of the Council and 
Chief Executive once the Statements have been approved. 

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 N/A

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 To update the committee on the progress for publishing the Financial Statements 2018/19.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 Strengthened governance arrangements.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Constitution & Legal

5.1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 define these arrangements.

5.1.2 The Council’s Financial Statements are required to be audited, approved and published by 
31 July each year with the exception of paragraph 1.4.

5.2.1 Financial 

5.2.2 There are no financial implications as a result of this report. The audit of the Financial 
Statements provide external validation that the stewardship of public funds has been 
undertaken effectively, and that the statutory reporting requirements laid out in the 
accounting code of practice have been followed. 

5.2.3 The Financial Statements presented in Appendix A are currently being subject to a final 
verification by the external auditors. Minor presentational issues may arise in this process 
and an approved final version will be submitted to the chair of the Committee for signature. 

5.3 Risk Management 

5.3.1 The Council's risk management arrangements are reflected in the Annual Governance 
Statement.

5.3.2 The audit process has identified some areas where improvements are necessary, and 
these will be implemented for the production of the Financial Statements 2019/20.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 All

7.0 ACRONYMS 

Page 18



Background papers: 

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Christine Marshall; Executive Director - Commercialisation; 

Section 151 Officer
Telephone Number: Telephone Number: 01775 761161
Email: Email: christine.marshall@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting

Name and Post: Steve Houchin – Head of Financial Services

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A     2018/19 Financial Statements 
Appendix B     2018/19 Annual Governance Statement

Page 19

mailto:christine.marshall@breckland-sholland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

For the Year Ended 31 March 2019

Scope of responsibilities

South Holland District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards, that public money is safeguarded, properly 
accounted for, used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a duty under 
the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in 
the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, South Holland District Council is also responsible for 
ensuring that there is a sound system of governance which facilitates the effective exercise of 
its functions, guarantees that the financial and operational management of the authority is 
effective and includes arrangements for the management of risk.

South Holland District Council has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance, 
which is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government. A copy of the Code is available on our website at:
https://www.sholland.gov.uk/article/5700/Standards-and-Code-of-Conduct

This statement explains how South Holland District Council has complied with the code and 
also meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 in relation to 
consideration of the findings of a review of the system of internal control and approval and 
publication of an annual governance statement.

The purpose of the Governance Framework

The Governance Framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values, by 
which the Council is directed and controlled and the activities through which it accounts to, 
engages with and leads its communities. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of 
its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of 
appropriate services and value for money.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage 
risk to a reasonable level. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process 
designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims 
and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood and potential impact of those risks being realised, and 
to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. It cannot eliminate all risk and can only 
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.

The Governance Framework has been in place at South Holland District Council for the year 
ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of approval of the Financial Statements.

The Governance Framework

Vision and Priorities – the Council’s ambition is to continue to increase the prosperity and 
wellbeing of residents and businesses, whilst striving to protect and enhance the district’s 
environment and its unique and historic character. Council priorities are:

 To develop safer, stronger, healthier and more independent communities while protecting 
the most vulnerable,

Page 135

https://www.sholland.gov.uk/article/5700/Standards-and-Code-of-Conduct


 To have pride in South Holland by supporting the district and residents to develop and 
thrive,

 To provide the right services, at the right time and in the right way, and 
 To encourage the local economy to be vibrant with continued growth.

Quality of Services - The Council has an established Performance Management Strategy 
which sets out how it monitors both performance and the delivery of objectives and risks. The 
framework for managing performance has been completely reviewed in light of changes to the 
business planning and shared management arrangements, with new performance measures 
also being developed to reflect the change in central government policy to move away from 
national targets to those that better identify with local requirements’.

Operational Governance - The Council has produced an operational governance document 
whose purpose is to ensure the senior officers effectively manage the business of the Council, 
this document is reviewed regularly (last reviewed November 2018). It covers the shared 
management officer led groups/boards which report to the Executive Management Team (EMT) 
and then through to Corporate Management Team (CMT) as required. Each group/board is 
supported with agreed terms of reference and the minutes and actions are reviewed by EMT. 
EMT manages the business of the Council and CMT escalation of corporate level issues risks 
and decisions. The groups/boards cover a wide range of areas, such as; Finance, Performance 
Risk and Audit, Joint Safeguarding, statutory officers group and Transformation to name a few.  
There are a number of other groups covering cross cutting themes and specific services which 
also report to the Corporate Management Team.

South Holland District Council also participates in the Lincolnshire Counter-Fraud Partnership 
and regular updates are circulated within applicable departments and partner organisations to 
ensure controls are amended as necessary.

Constitution and Responsibilities - A comprehensive document setting out the Council’s 
constitution exists which sets out the clearly defined structure for the Council’s organisational 
and decision-making arrangements based upon a Cabinet/Executive model. It sets out how the 
Council operates, what matters are reserved for decision by the whole Council, the 
responsibilities of the Cabinet and the matters reserved for collective and individual decisions, 
and the powers delegated to panels, committees and community councils. In essence the 
different roles can be summarised as follows:
 
 Council decides upon certain policies and other specialist functions that cannot be 

delegated elsewhere including the setting of the council tax,
 A limited number of policies are reserved to the Council, either by the Council’s own 

choice or because they are allocated by law (together these are known as the Policy 
Framework). Subject to any specific legislative requirements, the Cabinet is responsible 
for all policies outside of the Policy Framework,

 For its most significant decisions, the Cabinet works to a Key Decision Plan of forthcoming 
decisions for up to twelve months ahead,

 All decisions, along with formal minutes of all committee meetings are published on the 
Council’s website,

 The work of the Cabinet and the Council as a whole is supported by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees through the Policy Development Panel and the Performance 
Monitoring Panel and associated task and finish groups. The Panels scrutinise decisions 
made by the Cabinet, and those delegated to officers, and review services provided by 
the Council and its partners.  The Panels have developed their own work programme for 
the review of Council services in addition to scrutinising the work of the Cabinet. The 
Panels can ‘call-in’ a decision which has been made by the Executive but not yet 
implemented,

Page 136



 The Governance and Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the effective 
development and operation of corporate governance in the Council. It provides 
independent assurance of the adequacy of the governance arrangements, including the 
risk management framework, the associated control environment, financial and non-
financial performance including exposure to risk and potential threats to the control 
environment. It also has the responsibility for the approval of the Statements of Accounts 
and review of treasury policy and outturn.

 Separate committees exist for Planning and Licensing.
 Delegation arrangements to committees, the Executive and officers are set out in detail 

within the constitution, and
 Regular meetings take place between relevant senior officers and members of the Council 

to discuss and propose policy.

The constitution also includes sections on standing orders, financial regulations and conduct of 
meetings. The constitution as a whole is reviewed periodically with interim updates as and when 
appropriate. A complete review of the constitution was carried out in 2015/16 to ensure that it 
remains relevant and effective. Formal adoption of the revised constitution was made at Full 
Council in January 2016 and there is a standing item at Full Council for any minor updates to 
be made.

Effective leadership - The Constitution sets out roles and responsibilities for the Council and 
its standing committees, as well as the Leader, Cabinet and Portfolio Holders. All working 
groups have clear terms of reference for their work in supporting policy development and 
progress monitoring. Roles and responsibilities of Councillors are defined in both generic and 
specific job descriptions that have been tested through consultation and based on a 
recommended national model with some additional local interpretation. A clear Officer/Member 
delegation framework exists to provide clarity on the powers entrusted in those appointed to 
make decisions on behalf of the Council.

The Council has adopted a standard form of committee report which seeks to ensure that all 
matters coming to Councillors for decision have first received consideration in respect of all 
appropriate and necessary, legal, financial and professional matters, as well as risk. This has 
been expanded to include coverage of technical matters such as carbon footprint. The Council 
updates and publishes Key Decision and Exempt Decision Plans. These record all key and 
exempt decisions the Executive expects to make in the next twelve months.

Policies, Procedures, Laws and Regulations - The statutory officers of South Holland District 
Council are the Head of the Paid Service, the Monitoring Officer and the Section 151 Officer. 
They are responsible for staff and ensuring the Council acts within the law and in accordance 
with established policies and procedures. The Section 151 Officer is specifically responsible for 
the proper discharge of financial arrangements and must advise the Council where any proposal 
might be unlawful or where expenditure is likely to exceed resources, and to ensure that the 
authority’s financial management arrangements conform to the governance requirements as 
set out in the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy statement on the Role of 
the Chief Financial Officer (2010).

Compliance with established policies, procedures, statements, laws and regulations is ensured 
by the requirements of the constitution to give the Chief Executive, the Monitoring Officer  and 
the Chief Finance Officer (Executive Director Commercialisation) the opportunity to comment 
on every report submitted to a decision making body. The Monitoring Officer has a legal duty to 
ensure the lawfulness and fairness of decision making.
The Council understands its legal powers and limitations, and seeks to ensure that it acts 
lawfully at all times. The Monitoring Officer is responsible for advising the Council if any 
proposal, decision or omission is likely to give rise to unlawfulness or maladministration.

Page 137



The statutory officers are also members of the authority’s Corporate and Executive 
Management Teams. Service Managers are responsible for ensuring that legislation and policy 
relating to service delivery and health and safety are implemented in practice.

Working relationships - The Constitution of the Council sets out a number of delegated 
authorities for Officers, including the conditions of such delegations. Other delegations may also 
be granted separately from the constitution and these are recorded in a log maintained by the 
Monitoring Officer.

All staff have conditions of employment and job descriptions that set out their roles and 
responsibilities. There is also a competency framework. The framework defines the 
competencies required of each post in the Council so that individuals can be assessed against 
them to identify suitability for the posts, areas of strength and areas for further development. 
Competencies can be used to measure how well we do things and are essential to the 
performance management process. The competencies provide consistent standards across the 
organisation, which align to the corporate Core Values and help to identify the types of 
behaviour the Council wishes to promote, develop and engender.

Codes of Conduct - The Council’s constitution contains codes of conduct applying to members 
as well as a protocol for councillor/officer relationships. These have enabled the authority to 
develop an inclusive culture over the years, whereby members and officers work together to 
deliver the Council’s vision and quality services to its residents. The codes include reference to 
the need to declare any interests which may conflict with the individual’s role at the Council and 
such registers for councillors and officers are maintained by the Council. The Members’ Code 
of Conduct was reviewed during 2016-17

Complaints - The Council has in place a Whistle-blowing Policy as well as a compliments and 
complaints procedure that ensure that any referrals are fully investigated, properly resolved and 
learning applied to service delivery. Systems and procedures have been enhanced to ensure 
that complaints/service requests are a cornerstone of the management approach of the Council.

Partnership working - The Financial Regulations of the Council set out the principles of 
effective management of resources when working in partnership, including the setting of clear 
objectives and management of financial and delivery risks.

The South Holland District Council shared management arrangement with Breckland District 
Council has been in place for many years and is well established. Despite the commitment to 
sharing a management team the two Councils continue to exercise independent democratically 
accountable local government in their respective areas, each having its own governance 
arrangements. A Memorandum of Understanding is in place, and sets out the governance 
arrangements for shared management and joint working.

Group Companies – Public Sector Partnership Services Ltd, (PSPS), formerly Compass Point 
Business Services (East Coast) Ltd. (CPBS) was set up by South Holland and East Lindsey 
District Councils in August 2010 to deliver human resources, customer services, ICT, revenues 
and benefits, and financial services to the two authorities. South Holland District Council owns 
a 37% stake in the company with the remaining share being owned by East Lindsey District 
Council. Each authority has equal voting rights.

The PSPS Board of Directors includes Councillors and Chief Officers of both authorities. The 
company has regularly reported its progress on performance of services to the Monitoring 
Officer, with quarterly shareholder performance being subject to Scrutiny.

Page 138



An annual business plan is approved by Council. The ongoing governance arrangements are 
set out in the Service Level Agreement (SLA), and a management Agreement is in place that 
sets out the partnership arrangements, principles and parameters.

The Council is the sole shareholder of South Holland Local Housing Community Interest 
Company. The board of directors are responsible for preparing the Director’s report, financial 
statements and governance arrangements for the company.

Welland Homes Limited was set up during 2015-16 and became fully operational in 2016-17 
with the Council as the sole shareholder. The Board of Directors is responsible for preparing 
the Director’s report, Financial Statements and governance arrangements for the company. 
Officers of the Council work within this framework to deliver services to the company and 
Welland Homes operates within the governance arrangements of the Council when delivering 
services to the authority.

Transparency
The Council strives to be publicly accountable and to present its work with openness and 
transparency. As such, the authority routinely publishes data on its website in accordance with 
the requirements of the Local Government Transparency Code 2015.  In addition Committee 
reports, minutes and decision records are all available on the website. The Council also 
applies the principle that everything is publically available unless there is a substantial reason 
for not doing so.

Functions and roles

Financial management
The Executive Director (Commercialisation) is designated the responsible officer for the 
administration of the financial affairs of the Council under S151 of the Local Government Act 
1972. This includes ensuring the lawfulness and financial prudence of decision making; 
providing advice, particularly on financial impropriety, publicity and budget issues, giving 
financial information; and acting as the Council Money Laundering Reporting Officer. The 
Section 151 Officer is specifically responsible for the proper discharge of financial arrangements 
and must advise the Council where any proposal might be unlawful or where expenditure is 
likely to exceed resources, and to ensure that financial management arrangements conform to 
the governance requirements as set out in the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer.

The Council operates a strong financial management framework to ensure the lawful and best 
economic use of the Council’s assets. Financial regulations are supported by effective financial 
procedures underpinned by the work of internal and external audit. Financial regulations and 
contract procedure rules are periodically reviewed to ensure they remain effective in supporting 
sound internal control.

Risk Management
The Council’s risk management arrangements are embedded in its Corporate Risk 
Management Strategy and risk registers. South Holland District Council has developed its 
performance system to maintain a register of the key strategic risks it considers it faces along 
with the actions planned or taken to mitigate these risks, which have been monitored by 
Performance, Risk and Audit Board, Executive Management Team and the Governance and 
Audit Committee on a regular basis. Risk logs are also being used to manage the risks for key 
projects and partnerships, along with other project management techniques, and all key 
decisions are required to be assessed for risks. All committee reports contain a mandatory risk 
section to ensure that members can consider the risks and opportunities of any 
recommendations or options, so that the consideration of risk forms an integral part of all 
decision making.

Page 139



Data Protection
Following the implementation of the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) 2016/679 and 
Data Protection Act 2018 our policies, practices and procedures have been updated and 
continue to be updated to reflect changes and guidance as it is issued.  Data Protection 
continues to be a priority and is being overseen by the Executive Manager for Governance, the 
Information Governance Officer and a corporate governance group; the Statutory Information 
Group.  Progress is reported to the Executive Management Team on a monthly basis and the 
Council received ‘Reasonable Assurance’ for a GDPR audit in January 2019.  

Councillor and officer development
The Council has a Councillor Development Working Group and provides opportunities to all 
members to undertake appropriate Development, both on first election and on an on-going 
basis. In addition certain regulatory committees require member training before undertaking that 
role. The Council is working towards reaccreditation for the Member Development Charter. 

Staff performance is managed using a performance development framework. The Performance 
Development Review (PDR) process improves communications and ensures employees have 
clear objectives and an understanding of how they contribute to corporate priorities and goals. 
All Council employees have a minimum of one annual Performance Development Review which 
is followed up and monitored by the reviewer and reviewee throughout the year. PDR’s include 
a process for identifying training and development needs, setting objectives, providing a 
mechanism for feedback, in addition to aligning to the corporate core values and competence 
frameworks required by staff.

There is a strong working relationship between Councillors and staff, and the Council aims to 
ensure that they have the skills, resources and support needed to perform effectively in their 
roles. The Council has an embedded induction process and a continuous development ethos. 

Senior officers are also expected to keep abreast of developments in their profession at all times 
and attend suitable training to maintain their professional competency.

Community engagement
The Council is committed to listening to and involving the community and consistently 
demonstrates that it does, therefore both the Medium Term Financial Plan and the Corporate 
Plan went out for public consultation prior to adoption. Our consultation processes provide 
useful feedback on services, public perceptions and quality of life; we provide guidance on good 
practice and we profile respondents to better understand equalities implications. The Housing 
Service employs a tenant engagement officer to work closely with our tenants, some of whom 
are also our most vulnerable, and understand their specific needs. Our community engagement 
strategy provides a robust strategic framework for addressing the most significant barriers to 
engagement in South Holland, and a programme of action for improving information provision, 
consultation and empowerment. This is complemented by our web strategy and online 
capability.

Review of effectiveness
South Holland District Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of 
the effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control. The 
review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the executive managers within the authority 
who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, 
the Internal Audit Consortium Manager’s annual report, and also by comments made by the 
external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. The review of effectiveness 
covers all group activities undertaken by the Council with other partners. 

Page 140



The Council approves and keeps under regular review all the strategic policies which it 
reserves for its own consideration, including:
 The Constitution,
 The Corporate Business Plan,
 The Medium Term Financial Plan and Capital Strategy,
 The Licensing Authority Policy Statement,
 The Corporate Asset Management Strategy,
 The Treasury Management and Investment Strategies, and
 The Gambling Policy.

The Leader
 Executive powers vest in the Leader and the Leader has approved delegations to the 

Cabinet and Executive Members (Portfolio Holders). The Leader exercises executive 
functions which have not been expressly delegated to Cabinet or the other Executive 
Members.

The Cabinet is appointed by the Leader and carries out the executive functions of the Council 
as required by legislation and the Council’s constitution and accordingly:
 Takes executive decisions,
 Approves policies other than those reserved for Council, and
 Recommends to Council policies and budgetary decisions.

The Executive consists of the Leader and Executive Members (Portfolio Holders), who 
together are the Cabinet and most day to day ‘executive’ decisions fall to the Executive under 
the law.

The Overview and Scrutiny Commission may undertake any work relating to the four key 
principles of scrutiny as follows:
 Hold the Executive to Account (Call-In),
 Performance Management,
 Assist Policy Development and Review, and
 Internal/External Scrutiny.

The Governance and Audit Committee
 Considers and approves audit plans,
 Considers audit reports,
 Comments on the work of audit in addressing the authority’s significant risks,
 Satisfies itself that the control and governance arrangements have operated effectively 

by considering audit and risk reports and undertaking ad hoc reviews,
 Annually self-assess themselves against best practice guidance to check their 

effectiveness,
 Approves the Statements of Accounts,
 Reviews treasury policy and performance, and
 Consider standards issues.

Executive and Corporate Management. CMT review corporate responsibility, direction and 
delivery of corporate plan, direction and delivery of resources, horizon scanning and key 
controls. EMT receives regular reports from a variety of governance boards which have been 
set up to manage corporate performance and risk. These boards cover performance and risk, 
employee relations, safeguarding, health and safety, emergency planning, and finance, as well 
as the statutory officers group. There are a number of other groups covering cross cutting 
themes and specific services.

Page 141



Managers have carried out self-assessments of the processes and controls they have in place 
to allow them to achieve their service objectives. These are reviewed by Finance to provide 
assurance that effective controls were in place.

External Auditors review the Council’s arrangements for:
 Preparing accounts in compliance with statutory and other relevant requirements,
 Ensuring the proper conduct of financial affairs and monitoring their adequacy and 

effectiveness in practice, and
 Managing performance to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of 

resources.

External audit is provided by Ernst & Young LLP (EY). Following the annual audit EY issues an 
Audit Results Report to the Governance and Audit Committee covering the opinion on the 
financial statements, value for money and the Whole of Government Accounts submission. The 
Council takes appropriate action where improvements need to be made. 

Internal Audit
The S151 Officer has provided the Internal Audit service through a contract with Eastern Internal 
Audit Services Ltd which monitors the effectiveness of the control environment and reports 
specific recommendations to the senior management and the Governance and Audit 
Committee. The Head of Internal Audit provides an independent opinion on the framework of 
governance, risk management and control, which is incorporated in the Annual Report and 
Opinion. The Head of Internal Audit also places reliance on the outcomes of the work 
undertaken by East Lindsey District Council in relation to the services provided by Public Sector 
Partnership Service Ltd.

The internal audit conclusions are scored as either Substantial, Reasonable, Limited or No 
assurance by internal audit.

From the work undertaken by Internal Audit during the year, the Head of Internal Audit provides 
an opinion on the effectiveness of South Holland District Council’s arrangements for 
governance, risk management and control; for the 2018/19 financial year the opinion concluded 
is of reasonable assurance, which is an improvement from 2017/18 when a limited assurance 
opinion was reported.

We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the 
governance framework by Cabinet and Governance and Audit Committee, and that the 
arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the Governance 
Framework. The areas already addressed and those to be specifically addressed with new 
actions planned are outlined below.

Significant Governance Issues

All issues raised are subject to action plans to improve the control environment.

In 2018/19 Internal Audit conducted a total of eighteen audits and reported a limited 
assurance opinion for two areas, these were Procurement and Contract Management and 
Financial Services.

For Procurement and Contract management, three out of nine important recommendations 
remain outstanding at year end and relate to; production of a procurement strategy, providing 
clarification on officer authorisation and reviewing the contract template.  For Financial 
Services; six urgent priority recommendations have been raised and are in progress. 

Page 142



With regards to 2017/18, the Head of Internal Audit has reported that out of the 85 total 
recommendations raised, five significant recommendations of urgent and important priority 
remain outstanding from Limited/No Assurance reports raised. These recommendations 
should therefore be reported in the AGS until resolved, these are detailed as follows:

Two urgent and one important are outstanding remain outstanding from the 2017/18 Asset 
Management report. They relate to carrying out a programmed review of all leases, carrying 
out end of tenancy inspections and updating the lettings policy. These recommendations will 
be completed following a review of the service, which is currently underway.

Two High Priority recommendations are outstanding. Income collection software had been 
implemented and was still in the testing phase. The recommendation sought assurance that 
testing would be completed and the software implemented. The other recommendation relates 
to undertaking regular review of system user permissions to approve transactions in the 
accounting system. This has been significantly reviewed and brought up to date, though not 
yet complete. The risk will be reduced and the recommendation will be completed early in the 
new financial year.

Certification

We are satisfied that appropriate arrangements are in place to address improvements identified 
in our review of effectiveness. Progress on these improvements and mitigation of risks will be 
monitored by the Executive Management Team and Governance and Audit Committee through 
the year and be considered in our next annual review.
               

                                  

                                                  

Anna Graves Lord Porter of Spalding
Chief Executive Leader of the Council

Date: Date:

Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Manager - Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) – Mark Stinson

To: Governance and Audit Committee - Thursday, 25 July 2019 

(Author: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer)

Subject Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee

Recommendation:

That the Committee gives consideration to the content of this report and identifies any issues for 
discussion.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee regularly considers a variety of reports from Internal 
Audit, External Audit and the Section 151 Officer.

1.2 Many of these reports are considered at regular intervals, the majority being annually, half-
yearly or quarterly.

1.3 In addition to these reports, the Committee also considers issues on an ad-hoc basis with 
some reports arising from consideration of items at previous meetings.

1.4 Attached at Appendix A to this report is the Work Programme for the Governance and Audit 
Committee.  It lays out all meeting dates for the 2019/20 municipal year. Alongside each of 
these meeting dates are issues considered by the Committee on a regular basis together 
with the author of the report, its purpose and whether it is mandatory, and the frequency 
with which it is considered.

1.5 It has been agreed that this Work Programme be a regular item for consideration on the 
Committee’s agenda, thus creating a formal document laying out the work of the 
Committee in a clear, structured and organised way.

1.6 The attached document contains items considered on a regular basis, and also any ad hoc 
issues as and when they arise, for example, issues raised at a meeting to be covered at a 
future meeting, and any one-off issues. 

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme. 

2.2 To do nothing.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To allow Committee members to feed into the Work Programme on a regular basis, to 
ensure that it stays relevant and up to date.

Page 145

Agenda Item 5.



4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The Work Programme is a formal document laying out the work of the Committee in a 
clear, structured and organised way, thus providing members with up to date and relevant 
information.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Constitution & Legal

5.1.1 Constitutional and Legal implications have been considered and in the opinion of the 
author, there are none arising out of this report.   However, the Work Programme should 
assist in providing a clear programme of work for the Governance and Audit Committee in 
line with the requirements laid out in the Council’s Constitution.

5.2 Risk Management 

5.2.1 Risk Management implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, 
there are none.  However, one of the roles of the Governance and Audit Committee is to 
monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and corporate 
governance in the Council, and the Work Programme should assist in keeping track of risk 
issues.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 No wards or communities will be affected by this post.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None.

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer

Name and Post: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer
Telephone Number 01775 764454
Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No
Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A Work Programme for the Governance and Audit Committee

Page 146



APPENDIX A

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS 2019/20

Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

25 July 2019 Approval of Annual Governance 
Statement, for inclusion with the 
Council’s published financial statements 
and approval of the audited 18/19 
financial statements.

Section 151 Officer Mandatory – approval required. Annual

Q1 2019-20 Risk Report Ross Bangs/Corey 
Gooch

Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

24 October 2019 SHDC Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 External Audit 
(Ernst & Young)

Mandatory/Consultation requirement
To approve audit fees

Annually

ISA  260 Report 18/19 (previously known 
as Annual Governance report)

External Audit 
(Ernst & Young)

Mandatory report to those charged 
with Governance

Annual

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2019-20

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

To each 
meeting

Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

To each 
meeting

Governance and Audit Committee Self 
Assessment

Internal Audit For confirmation.
Good practice.

Annual

Mid Term Treasury Report 19/20 Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy, reporting 
requirements.

Half-yearly

P
age 147



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

Q2 2019-20 Risk Report Ross Bangs/Corey 
Gooch

Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

16 January 2020 Grant Claims 18/19 External Audit 
(KPMG)

External Audit Certification of Grant 
Claims – Mandatory Approval

Annual

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2019-20

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

To each 
meeting

Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

To each 
meeting

Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision 
Policy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy 20/21

Section 151 Officer Mandatory requirement
To review Treasury Management 
Strategy and approve Prudential 
Indicators

Annual

12 March 2020 Audit Plan External Audit 
(Ernst & Young)

External Audit Plan – Mandatory 
Approval

Annual

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2019-20

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

To each 
meeting

Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plan 
2020/21

Internal Audit Annual Internal Audit Workplan -
Mandatory approval

Annual

Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

To each 
meeting

P
age 148



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

Financial Statements 2019/20 
Accounting Policies 

Section 151 Officer Not mandatory, but good practice. Annual

Q3 2019-20 Risk Report Ross Bangs/Corey 
Gooch

Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

The following item to be added to the Committee’s Work Programme on an ad hoc basis, where there is information to report:

 The Head of Internal Audit to present a performance report detailing levels and types of fraud.  

 External Audit (Ernst & Young) – Local Government Audit Committee Briefings are produced quarterly.  Where its publication coincides 
with a meeting, it will be added to the agenda for that meeting.  If not, it will be circulated outside of the meeting to members of the 
Committee.

P
age 149



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Maxine O’Mahony – Executive Director of Strategy and Governance 

To: Governance and Audit Committee – Thursday 25th July 2019

Author: Ross Bangs – Corporate Improvement and Performance Manager

Subject: Quarter 1 Risk Report

Purpose: To provide an update to the committee on the progress of the 
Council’s identified strategic risks

Recommendation(s): 

1) To note the content of the report

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The report presents the status of the Council’s 16 identified strategic risks as of the end 
of quarter 1 19/20

1.2 Strategic risks are captured on the Corporate Dashboard which is available to the 
Executive Management Team (EMT) and reviewed by EMT quarterly.  In addition, 
risks are reviewed monthly at the internal Performance, Risk & Audit Board chaired 
by the Executive Director of Strategy and Governance.

1.3 Strategic risks have been reviewed and updated with responsible members of the 
Executive Management Team.  The strategic risk register includes 16 strategic risks 
(see Appendix A).  These cover the over-arching risks that may affect the strategic 
direction of the council, rather than risks linked to business continuity or those that 
affect discreet service areas.

1.4 By their nature, strategic risks have been identified as having the potential to cause 
organisation wide impact and will often cover a number of key services and 
departments. 

1.5 The Council’s risk scoring mechanism is based on a 5x5 matrix and is comparable 
with best practice in other similar organisations. The risk matrix provides a 
comprehensive assessment and understanding of risk likelihood and impact. The 
matrix results in a numerical score which combines the impact of the risk occurring 
with the likelihood of it happening.

1.6 Risks fall into High, Medium or Low categories depending on their rating

High
Medium
Low

Page 151

Agenda Item 6.



1.7 Risks are tracked below in a heat map to represent the number of strategic risks 
currently reported at each score 

1.8 There are 16 strategic risks included within the Q1 19/20 Risk Report, one more than 
at the end of Q4 18/19. 

Risks are made up of the following -

Level of identified risk Q1 19/20 Q4 18/19
High 0 0
Medium 14 13
Low 2 2

 

Although the number or risks have remained static in each category, it is should be 
noted that there has been some positive movement within the categories. It should 
be further noted that for the fourth consecutive month there have been no risks 
identified as high. 

Of those considered a medium risk, there has been a positive movement for the 
following. 

There has been further reduction in the risk relating to staff recruitment and retention. 
Quarter 1 has continued the low turnover trend we saw at the end of the last quarter 
with no officers leaving the council within this period. In addition, staff recruitment 
continues to improve across all areas of the Council. This can be attributed to the way 
in which we are both advertising our vacant roles and the packages which we are 
able to offer. Retention is also continuing its positive trend and all posts are being 
recruited to within the target times set. 

The risk relating to the failure to deliver the local plan has reduced to the lowest risk 
level at 1x1 as the Local Plan Inspectors report was received on 29th January and 
subject to modifications was found to be sound. The Local Plan was subsequently 
adopted at a meeting of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan Joint Committee on 
8th March. 

Page 152



Another risk which has reduced in impact is of a critical breach of ICT security. The 
service have assessed this risk based on the current cyber security threats for all local 
government organisations and PSPS are  constantly ensuring that the most current 
anti-virus and malware software is in place in addition to ongoing user education and 
support. The introduction of a dedicated Security Analyst has helped PSPS develop 
new standards and processes to combat increasing threats from cyber-attacks, along 
with offsite backups and file recovery systems in place. With the mitigations listed the 
service has reduced the impact from 5 to 4. 

The remaining risks although reviewed remain static from Q4; these include. 

The Councils medium term financial plan including the uncertainty surrounding the 
future of the Governments Settlement Funding will remain static until the outcome of 
the government’s reviews are known and understood.  

The impact of business rate appeals and county council budget reductions, these 
risks remain the same as the NHS appeal is still ongoing and will not be altered until 
the outcome is determined, additionally there has been no further update from county 
council in regards to budget reductions.

The risk relating to the impact on the Council of the Homelessness Reduction Act 
remains static. The processes have been updated and the speed in handling 
homelessness cases within the service is improving as front line operational staff 
have adapted and built the appropriate networks. The knowledge base required for 
the role is in-depth and therefore training is on-going for the team which means the 
risk level has not changed.

The above assessment continues to be the Business as Usual position. The Housing 
Options Manager is currently working with the CIP Business Partner to review the 
service to take account of current service pressures and take account of future 
requirements.

With regards to the risk around GDPR implementation there is good progress being 
made with Audit recommendations and with the continued implementation of the 
Project Plan.  Breaches appear to be reducing and further training of Data Champions 
has taken place.  Provided we continue in this positive direction then it is anticipated 
that the risks may be deemed to be reduced by the next period.

Our contracts monitoring risk remains the same as last quarter as the service 
continues to maintain a watching brief in relation to Brexit developments and what 
impact this may have on our contracted supplier supply chains.

The risk around PSPS failure to deliver core services also remains stable as regular 
meetings are being held with the Service head at PSPS between both the client lead 
and service manager, to manage any performance issues. Both corporate and service 
specific SLA's have been agreed for 2019-20. Which aligns with the new corporate 
plan. Reviewed performance standards will be agreed and signed off for the coming 
year to align with the corporate plan

The risks surrounding the failure to effectively implement the corporate business 
continuity plans remain the same in this quarter although positive progress has been 
made which will likely see this risk reduce for next quarter, All Business Impact 
Analysis and Business Continuity Plans have been completed and reviewed by the 
Emergency Planning Officer but, have still to be tabled/signed off at the Emergency 
Planning Board.

Page 153



As part of the annual risk review, the team have reviewed all service areas and 
departments with the relevant Executive Director to ensure that any new identified 
risks are included within the register and suitable mitigation put in place. In addition, 
a wholesale review of all existing risks has been undertaken to ensure that the register 
remains current and relevant. 

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 That the contents of this report are noted

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 This recommendation is proposed so that the Council can use its risk matrix to 
formally measure and monitor the impact of any new policy including any impact 
which Brexit may have on South Holland District Council. 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 To ensure that the identified Strategic Risks are properly monitored and reviewed in 
accordance with the Corporate Risk Policy. 

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1      Constitution & Legal

 The report is made within the terms of reference of the Governance and Audit 
Committee. 

5.2       Corporate Priorities

The report presents progress monitoring of performance of the corporate priorities.

5.3 Financial

The report contains information on Council’s financial risks which does convey 
some information relating to financial matters.

5.4 Reputation

Performance issues can cause some reputational consequence.  It is the purpose of 
this report to highlight performance issues at an early stage.

5.5 Risk Management

Performance issues may be subject to risk management measures to protect 
Council interests.

5.6 Staffing

The report contains information relating to staffing issues.

Page 154



6.0       WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 

6.1       No Wards or Communities are affected 

7.0       ACRONYMS 

PMP – Performance Monitoring Panel
LA – Local Authority
PSPS – Public Sector Partnerships Services
SLA’s- Service level agreements
GDPR- General Data Protection Regulations
CIP- Corporate Improvement & Performance

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Ross Bangs  – Corporate Improvement & Performance 

Manager
Telephone Number: 07870835233
Email: ross.bangs@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting
Name and Post: Ross Bangs – Corporate Improvement & Performance 

Manager

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A
Appendix B 

Quarter 1 Risk Register
Quarter 1 Risk Register (below the line)

Page 155

file:///C:/Users/CharlottePaine/Democratic%20Services/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc
mailto:greg.pearson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



SHDC Strategic Risk Report

Title Description Original 
Assessment Controls/Mitigation Current Risk 

Score Impact Likeli-
hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note

Medium 
Term 
Financial 
Plan Not 
Delivered

The Medium Term 
Financial Plan 
includes a balanced 
position which is 
dependent on 
delivery of further 
savings

12

There are a number of 
controls in place to track 
delivery including finance 
board, Performance, Risk 
& Audit Board & EMT. 
PI's are tracking variance 
from plan

12 4 3

Both impact and likelihood 
remain the same for this risk 
due to there being no notable 
or significant changes in both 
the local government 
settlement and the business 
rates review. Until such a time 
as a decision is made in 
relation to one or both of these, 
there will be no major change 
in impact or likelihood. 

Uncertainty 
over future 
government 
funding 
settlement

Government funding 
reductions due to a 
weakening of the 
economy may be 
experienced during 
the period of the 
MTFP 

12

4yr MTFP sets out 
programme to be free of 
reliance on RSG by 2019. 
Setting investment funds, 
commercial property and 
growth to ensure 
continued income.
Star chamber exercises 
and constant forward 
looking reviews are now 
underway.

12 4 3

There is no update to this risks 
likelihood or impact due to 
there being no significant or 
notable changes in relation to 
the outcome of this review. This 
risk may be altered once a 
decision in relation to the 
settlement is reached.

P
age 157



Title Description Original 
Assessment Controls/Mitigation Current Risk 

Score Impact Likeli-
hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note

Impact of 
business 
rate appeals

Business rate 
retention policy 
changes leave the 
council exposed to 
risks on collection 
and baseline 
income. 

20

Financial provision has 
been made to cover the 
risk of current appeals, 
collection rates and 
growth

12 3 4

This risk remains the same 
since it's previous update due 
to no change in the situation. 
The NHS appeal is still ongoing 
and the risk may be altered 
based on the outcome of this.

Critical 
breach of 
ICT security

Attacks are 
happening with 
increasing 
frequency at 
present. Ransom 
and theft specialists 
are targeting 
banking details and 
personal 
information, as with 
all other government 
systems and private 
companies 

25

There is a comprehensive 
suite of protection 
measures in place 
including email filtering, 
web filtering, antivirus and 
windows updates which 
help to protect from 
viruses

12 4 3

PSPS on behalf of its clients 
continues its vigilance. 

The introduction of a dedicated 
Security Analyst role has given 
PSPS the resource to develop 
new standards and processes 
to combat the increasing risk of 
cyber attacks and be far more 
proactive in the management of 
security threats internally and 
externally.

Whilst a security breach will 
always be a possibility in 
today's environment, SHDC 
have a level of defence in 
depth which operates levels of 
security from the perimeter to 
the end user devices. It should 
be confident of the 
considerable investment and 
enhancements made in this 
area over previous years but 
must be cognisant of the 
ongoing role required of staff 
and Members.  The impact of 

P
age 158



Title Description Original 
Assessment Controls/Mitigation Current Risk 

Score Impact Likeli-
hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note

any such breach will always 
remain high/critical due to the 
possible disruption to statutory 
services.

Impact of 
Homelessne
ss 
Reduction 
Act

The implementation 
of the new act 
places additional 
burdens on SHDC 
which may mean a 
reduced ability 
within the service to 
adhere to the act 
due to an 
unpredictable 
increase of persons 
approaching the 
housing options 
service. Capacity 
may be impacted by 
increased volumes 
of homeless 
applications, 
increased time 
needed to manage 
each case in order 
to fulfil the 
requirements of the 
new legislation and 
risk that the 
expansion of the 
duty could lead to a 
serious shortfall in 
available temporary 
housing options to 

12

•         Implementation of 
specialist Jigsaw 
Software to case manage 
under provisions of HRA 
2017 
•         Increase in 
establishment of Housing 
Options Officer in SHDC 
as part of Place Review 
•         Additional 
experienced temporary 
staff from February 2018 
to triage cases 
•         Increase of admin 
support to Housing 
Options Team to better 
utilise specialist staff to 
focus on complex cases 
•         Training in new 
duties to be ongoing 
(initial joint SHDC/BDC 
training held in January 
2018) 
•         Utilisation of £62k 
New Burdens funding 
•         Identification of 
options within SHDC 
stock 
•         Identification of 

12 3 4

The risk continues to be 
reviewed on an ongoing basis 
by the Housing Options 
Manager. The numbers of 
applicants remains consistent - 
the shortfalls in team capacity 
have now been addressed with 
recruitment complete for all 
posts.

The processes have been 
updated and the speed in 
handling cases through these is 
improving as front line 
operational staff have adapted 
and built the appropriate 
networks. The knowledge base 
required for the role is in-depth 
and therefore training is on-
going for the team. The risk 
level has not changed.

The above assessment 
continues to be the Business 
as Usual position. The Housing 
Options Manager is currently 
commissioning a review of the 
service to take account of 
current service pressures and 
take account of future 

P
age 159



Title Description Original 
Assessment Controls/Mitigation Current Risk 

Score Impact Likeli-
hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note

accommodate 
homeless 
individuals and 
families 

private sector options 
within both districts 
•         Work with partners 
to open other potential 
options 

requirements.

Impact of 
County 
Council 
Budget 
Reductions

Impact of County 
Council Budget 
Reductions. This will 
potentially impact on 
resident wellbeing. 

9

Ensure that Place 
directorate are involved 
early in conversations to 
represent the council and 
its residents

9 3 3

There is no change to this risk 
or likelihood due to no further 
update from county council. 
This is due linked to business 
rates review and the local 
government settlement (both of 
which remain in the same place 
as the last update). When an 
update is available, this risk will 
be altered to reflect any 
changes.

General 
Data 
Protection 
Regulation 
Implementat
ion

With the 
implementation of 
the General Data 
Protection 
Regulation, which 
replaces the Data 
Protection Action of 
1998, there is a risk 
that the council will 
not manage its data 
appropriately and in 
line with the new 
regulations.

16

Monthly meetings of the 
statutory information 
group have highlighted 
areas which need to be 
addressed and training 
was delivered in 
September for managers 
and proposed service 
Data Protection leads.

9 3 3

Good progress is being made 
with Audit recommendations 
and with continued 
implementation of the Project 
Plan.  Breaches appear to be 
reducing and further training of 
Data Champions has taken 
place.  Provided we continue in 
this positive direction then it is 
anticipated that the risks may 
be deemed to be reduced by 
the next period.

 

P
age 160



Title Description Original 
Assessment Controls/Mitigation Current Risk 

Score Impact Likeli-
hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note

Contracts 
Monitoring

This risk covers the 
councils monitoring 
of contracts with 
external partners to 
ensure 
arrangements are 
financially secure 
and performing

16

.        Regular monitoring 
of contracts
.        Regular 
communication with 
external partners and 
stakeholders
Keep up to date with 
external changes with 
partners

9 3 3

The status for this risk remains 
the same, there have been no 
incidents to note with existing 
contracted suppliers or service 
providers which the team 
continues to monitor closely.

In addition the service 
continues to maintain a 
watching brief in relation to 
Brexit developments and what 
impact this may have on our 
contracted supplier supply 
chains.

PSPS 
Failure to 
deliver core 
services

PSPS Failure to 
deliver core services 
- 
HR/IT/Finance/Reve
nues & Benefits 

12

Number of Governance 
processes in place 
including monitoring of 
performance in 
performance, risk and 
audit baord. PSPS also 
has its own board with 
governance.

8 4 2

Regular meetings are being 
held with the Service head at 
PSPS between both the client 
lead and service manager, to 
manage any performance 
issues.

Both corporate and service 
specific SLA's have been 
agreed for  2019-20. Which 
aligns with the new corporate 
plan

Reviewed performance 
standards will be agreed and 
signed off for the coming year 
to align with the corporate plan.

Most elements of the service is 
functional, however there have 

P
age 161



Title Description Original 
Assessment Controls/Mitigation Current Risk 

Score Impact Likeli-
hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note

been a number of audit reports 
with some assurance concerns, 
we continue to monitor this and 
address any issues that arise.

The two senior management 
post vacant, i.e. heads of HR 
and Finance, have now been 
filled.

Failure to 
maximise 
trading 
opportunitie
s

Failure to maximise 
trading opportunities 
could result in lack 
of commercial 
exploitation of 
assets or income 
from trading arms 

9

Governance is in place for 
MTFP through EMT, 
finance board and 
Performance Risk and 
Audit Board which 
monitor the work towards 
maximising trading
opportunities

6 3 2

There is no further update to 
this risk, whilst EHTC were 
slightly under target for initial 
financial targets set the service 
has achieved profit and is 
therefore commercially 
successful at present. 

Staff 
recruitment 
and 
retention at 
all levels 
within the 
organisatio
n

Staff recruitment 
and retention issues 
could undermine the 
effectiveness of the 
organisations 
though loss of 
experience and 
knowledge 

15

The mitigation for key 
senior posts that are 
vacant or serving their 
notice period will be to 
start recruitment and find 
suitable interim cover.  

6 3 2

There were no leavers at all for 
Q1 and this is the lowest 
turnover rate the council has 
seen, this is very positive when 
considering an organisation of 
our size usually sees on 
average 5-10 leavers per 
quarter. Recruitment continues 
to perform well and there are 
currently no issues identified in 
relation to recruitment and 
retention

P
age 162



Title Description Original 
Assessment Controls/Mitigation Current Risk 

Score Impact Likeli-
hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note

Failure to 
effectively 
implement 
corporate 
business 
continuity 
plan

Failure could lead to 
an impact on 
delivery of services, 
loss of IT systems, 
ineffective 
communication or a 
failure to provide 
suitable premises 

4

Working jointly with 
County to have business 
continuity post. Each 
team has a plan reviewed 
annually

6 3 2

Business Impact Analysis 
and Business Continuity 
Plans 

All Business Impact Analysis 
and Business Continuity Plans 
have been completed and 
reviewed by the Emergency 
Planning Officer but, have still 
to be tabled/signed off at the 
Emergency Planning Board.

Emergency/Incident 
Response Plan

A joint BDC/SHDC 
Emergency/Incident Response 
Plan is currently being 
completed and is planned for 
completion in June 2019.

Training

Lincolnshire Resilience Forum 
had planned to commence 
training of Tactical (Silver) 
Commanders in April 2019. 
However, due to all of the 
additional work Brexit has 
created, this is now planned to 
be commenced in the Autumn 
2019.

P
age 163



Title Description Original 
Assessment Controls/Mitigation Current Risk 

Score Impact Likeli-
hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note

Failure to 
deliver 
financial & 
non-
financial 
outcomes 
of the 
approved 
Welland 
Homes 
business 
plan

Failure to deliver 
financial & non-
financial outcomes 
of the approved 
business plan has 
implication in areas 
which include Legal, 
reputational and 
Financial. Risk also 
refers to capacity 
and expertise in the 
organsation to 
deliver the housing 
development 
requirement for both 
the HRA and 
Welland Homes.

8

Mitigations as follows;
• Revised governance 
including strengthened 
terms of reference. 
• Improved 
communication on 
Council policies to the 
WH Board. 
• Increased operational 
capability and capacity 
within Council to support 
future programmes and 
WH Board of Directors. 
• Permanent Housing 
Development programme 
manager 
• Positive Audit 
• Established 
methodology for 
assessing schemes 

6 3 2

This risk and likelihood remains 
the same as the council 
continues with the business 
plan and there is no immediate 
issue which would cause a 
change to this risk.

Failure to 
deliver the 
council's 
Corporate 
Priorities

Would lead to 
missed targets and 
failure to deliver 
objectives and may 
result in the Council 
suffering 
reputational damage 
and a failure to 
deliver priorities to 
residents. 

4

Corporate Delivery Plan 
sets out how to achieve 
corporate plan and this is 
under pinned by individual 
service plans and these 
are monitored at 
Performance, Risk & 
Audit Board monthly

4 2 2

The CIP team are currently 
working with all services to 
ensure that the councils 
corporate priorities are 
achieved and measured 
against the corporate plan, any 
areas within the corporate 
priorities that are not achieved 
will be raised accordingly.

P
age 164



Title Description Original 
Assessment Controls/Mitigation Current Risk 

Score Impact Likeli-
hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note

Failure to 
deliver 
Local Plan 
and its 
Delivery 
Plan

Failure to deliver 
Local Plan and its 
Delivery Plan - 
reputational and 
financial risk due to 
possible Secretary 
of State intervention. 
there is also a new 
risk emerging due to 
New Homes Bonus. 

8
Dedicated senior officer 
and EMT support to 
deliver the local plan

1 1 1

The Local Plan Inspectors 
report was received on 29th 
January and subject to 
modifications was found sound. 
The Local Plan was 
subsequently adopted at a 
meeting of the South East 
Lincolnshire Local Plan Joint 
Committee on 8th March. As 
the Local Plan has been 
recently adopted the risk rating 
has been downgraded.

 

P
age 165



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 167

Agenda Item 9.
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12Aof the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. Minutes
	4. External Audit Progress report and Unaudited Statement of Accounts 2018/19
	Appendix A for External Audit Progress report and Unaudited Statement of Accounts 2018/19
	Appendix B for External Audit Progress report and Unaudited Statement of Accounts 2018/19

	5. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme
	Appendix A

	6. Quarter 1 2019-20 Risk Report
	Appendix 1 for Quarter 1 2019-20 Risk Report

	9. Quarter 1 2019-20 Risk Report

